
 
 

   

 
Mission Statement 

In collaboration with our community and parents, the mission of Durham Public Schools is to 
provide all students with an outstanding education that motivates them to reach their full 
potential and enables them to discover their interests and talents, pursue their goals and 

dreams, and succeed in college, in the workforce and as engaged citizens. 
 

 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
1.   Call to Order 4:30 p.m. 

2. Moment of Silence  

3. Agenda Review and Approval 

4. Administrative Services Committee Meeting Minutes 
 

 February 13, 2014 
 

5. Public Comment  

6.    Operational Services 
       a.  Cooking Oil Fundraising Agreement 
       b.  Child Nutrition Services - Flavored Milk Update 
       c.  Lowe’s Grove Middle School – Bids for Track Improvements 
       d.  Hope Valley Elementary School – Bids for Asphalt Paving, ADA & Security Upgrades   
     
7.  Financial Services 
       a. 2014-15 Budget Development 
  
 8.    Follow-Up 
       
 9.    Adjournment 

A G E N D A 
 

Durham Public Schools Board of Education 
Administrative Services Committee 

March 13, 2014 
Fuller Administration Building, 511 Cleveland Street, Durham, NC 

 



                                                  
Date:   March 13, 2014 

 

          Durham Public Schools 
    ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES COMMITTEE 

           PRECIS

Subject: Administrative Services Committee Meeting Minutes 
 
 

Staff Liaison Present:      Phone #  
  
 

Main Points:   
  

Attached for committee consideration and approval are the following meeting minutes: 
 

 February 18, 2014 
    

Fiscal/Goal Implications: 
 

None 
 
 

 

  Recommendation 
  

Information               
 
  Discussion                 
   
  Action            X 
 
  Consent            
 
 
 
 
  



  
 

1 

 
MINUTES 

Administrative Services Committee of the  
Durham Public Schools of Education 

February 18, 2014 
 
 

The Administrative Services Committee of the Durham Public Schools Board of Education held 
a meeting on Thursday, February 18, 2014 at 2:30 p.m. in the Board Room of the Fuller 
Building, 511 Cleveland Street, Durham, NC. 
 
Board Members Present 
Natalie Beyer, Chair; Pastor Davis, Vice-Chair; Heidi Carter; Omega Parker; Nancy Cox; Leigh 
Bordley and Minnie Forte-Brown. 
 
Administrators Present 
Hugh Osteen, Interim Superintendent; Evia Nelson, Executive Director of Construction & 
Capital Planning; Elaine Batten, Director of Information Technology; Scott Denton, Executive 
Director of Auxiliary Services; Aaron Beaulieu, Chief Financial Officer; and Paul LeSieur; 
Executive Director of Budget Management Services and Jim Keaten, Executive Director of 
Child Nutrition Service and Mary Gray Leonard, Director of Educational Technology and 
Media. 
 
Attorney Present 
Ken Soo 
 
Call to Order/Moment of Silence   
Chair Beyer called the meeting to order and a moment of silence was observed. 
 
Agenda Review and Approval 
Ms. Cox informed board members that 2 members have other commitments and have to leave 
early.  Ms. Cox expressed her desire to move the Superintendent Search agenda up on the agenda 
so all board members would be present and adequate action could be taken by all members. 
 
After some conversation, Ms. Carter suggested that the agenda be followed as written and 
hopefully there would be enough quality time to discuss. 
 
Chair Beyer moved that the draft agenda be adopted as presented. 
 
Approval of Minutes 
Ms. Cox shared that the minutes from January 9, 2914 reflect she was absent for the meeting; 
however, she was present.  
 
Ms. Cox requested the date on the agenda be revised from February 13, 2014 from February 18, 
2014 to reflect the change due to inclement weather. 



  
 

2 

 
Ms. Cox made a motion to approve the minutes; seconded by Ms. Carter.  The motion was 
adopted. 
 
Public Speakers 
None 
 
2013-14 Budget Amendment #1 
 
Mr. Beaulieu stated that the Budget Amendment #1 shows adjustments for all account balances 
through January, 2014.  Mr. Beaulieu shared that this is one of three amendments for this year.  
Mr. Beaulieu reviewed the amendment in detail showing current budgets and amended budgets 
for all areas. 
 
Ms. Forte-Brown made a motion to move this item to the consent agenda; seconded by Ms. 
Carter; motion passed unanimously. 
 
2014-15 Budget Priorities/Guiding Principles 
 
Mr. Beaulieu stated that setting the overall budget priorities/guiding principles will assist the 
board and staff when building the 2014-15 budget.  Mr. Beaulieu reviewed the list of 
priorities/guiding principles. 
 
Ms. Carter suggested communicating this information with teachers once it is final.  Ms. Carter 
suggested board members review these priorities and if they had further comments or questions 
that they email Mr. Beaulieu or Mr. Osteen. 
 
Ms. Carter made a motion to move this item to the agenda for action; seconded by Ms. Forte-
Brown; motion passed unanimously. 
 
Information Technology – Durham Public Schools Technology Plan 
 
Ms. Batten stated that Durham Public Schools must provide the North Carolina Department of 
Public Instruction with a two-year technology plan in order to leverage Priority 2 eRate. 
 
Ms. Batten shared that Durham Public Schools Technology Plan represents a collaboratively-
developed plan that identifies goals and initiatives that align to the State Technology Plan and 
continues to influence technology within Durham Public Schools that promotes teaching and 
learning. 
 
Ms. Batten shared that the technology plan covers five priority areas and identifies teaching and 
learning initiatives that integrate, drive and require technology in the district. 
 
The five priorities are focused in the following areas: 
 



  
 

3 

 Priority 1: A statewide shared services model. 
 Priority 2: Universal access to personal teaching and learning devices. 
 Priority 3: A statewide access to digital teaching and learning resources, including                      

                        digital textbooks. 
 Priority 4: A statewide model of technology – enabled professional development. 
 Priority 5: 21st Century Leadership for all schools and districts. 

 
Ms. Batten explained that the technology plan for 2012-14 serves as a springboard for 
developing the 2014-16 Technology Plan.  Ms. Leonard shared some major focus areas for the 
2014-16 technology plan. 
 
Ms. Carter made a motion to move this item to the consent agenda; seconded by Ms. Parker; 
motion passed unanimously. 
 
Hillside High School – Bids for Chiller Replacement, Phase 2 
 
Ms. Nelson stated that lottery funds provided for the replacement of the chiller at Hillside High 
School.  Ms. Nelson shared that the existing chiller needs replacing.  Ms. Nelson explained that 
Phase 1 replaced the air cooled chiller; Phase 2 replaces the cooling tower. 
 
Ms. Nelson shared that the bids were received on January 23, 2014 from four qualified bidders.  
Ms. Nelson stated the lowest, responsive, responsible bidder is Southern Piping Company with a 
total bid of $188,000.  Ms. Nelson stated the contract is within the project budget and Minority 
Business Enterprise participation is 0%. 
 
Ms. Carter made a motion to move this item to the consent agenda; seconded by Ms. Parker; 
motion passed unanimously. 
 
Sale of Morris Street Facility 
 
Mr. Osteen stated that an offer by Measurement, Inc. to purchase the Morris Street property was 
already approved by the board.  Mr. Osteen shared that Durham Public Schools has followed the 
upset bid process and no upset bids were received.  Ms. Osteen stated that the final bid was for 
$901,200 and proceeds from the sale would be directed towards critical capital needs. 
 
Ms. Forte-Brown made a motion to move this item to the consent agenda; seconded by Ms. 
Carter; motion passed unanimously. 
 
Superintendent Search Process 
 
Mr. Osteen shared that 4 Request for Proposals have been received to date for professional 
services to assist with the Superintendent’s search.  Mr. Osteen explained that the board needs to 
determine a timeline for this process.  Mr. Osteen shared that some decisions should be 
considered: 

 Timeline, cost and experience. 



  
 

4 

 Confidential or non-confidential process? 
 National Search? 
 Community input? 
 Guidance from legal counsel. 

 
Ms. Carter shared that she had been sent another proposal from McPherson & Jacobson, LLC.  
Ms. Carter reminded board members that this is the firm that Wake County Schools used in 
spearheading their last Superintendent’s search process.  
 
Ms. Carter shared with board members that since the entire board was not present for the 
discussion she felt strongly as did others that this discussion be postponed to another time. 
 
Ms. Beyer suggested that this particular item would be worth a called special meeting soon.  Ms. 
Carter agreed and informed board members and staff that she, Minnie and Hugh would plan a 
meeting in the near future. 
 
There were no follow-up items. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 5:15 pm.  

 
 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
      Natalie Beyer, Committee Chair 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
      Hugh Osteen, Interim Superintendent 



 

A

Agenda
 

Staff Li
 
 
 

Main P
 

 B
fo

 
 T

pr
 

 U
fu

 
Administ
 

Fiscal I
 

 D
$

 

Strateg

Goal IV.
support t
environm

 

Purpo

Inform

Review

 

ADMINS

a Item:  Co

iaison Pre
 
 

Points: 

Board membe
or Durham P

The contract 
rogram and 

Use of DPS 
undraising. 

tration subm

Implicatio

DPS will rece
7,500 per m

gic Plan Al

3.1: Identify
the developm
mentally-frien

se 

mation   

wed by: 

             

Du
STRAT

ooking Oil F

esent: Hu
          Sco
  

ers have exp
Public Schoo

requires DP
to encourage

logos and s

mits this agre

ns: 

eive 25 cent
onth (and th

lignment: 

y current tren
ment of a dis
ndly materia

 D

  

                   

urham P
TIVE S

PR
Fundraising A

ugh Osteen
ott Denton 

 

pressed an in
ols (DPS) thr

PS to use re
e restaurants

school name

ement for di

ts per gallon
he cost of any

nds and activ
strict-wide e
al and the red

 

Discussion

Finance  A

                   

Public S
SERVIC
RECIS
Agreement 

 
 
  

nterest in par
rough collec

easonable ef
s to donate u

es will be re

iscussion and

n from the sa
y purchased 

ve opportuni
nergy maste
duction of en

n    

Aaron Beau

                   

Schools
CES CO
S 

 P
 

rtnering with
ction and pro

fforts to cre
used cooking

equired to p

d subsequen

ale of waste 
waste cooki

ities for busi
er plan, inclu
nergy consu

 

Action  

ulieu     A

 Date:  Mar

s 
OMMI

Phone #  56
      56

h Green Cir
ocessing of u

eate public a
g oil to the p

promote Bio

nt approval. 

cooking oil
ing oil). 

iness and sch
uding the us
umption. 

  C

Attorney B

rch 13, 2014

ITTEE

60-3831 
60-3822 

cle to raise f
used cooking

awareness o
rogram. 

odiesel 4 Sch

l less expens

hool industr
e of recycled

 

Consent  

Benita Jones

4    

 

funds 
g oil. 

of the 

hools 

ses of 

ries to 
d and 

  



March 2014 
 

1 
 

FUNDRAISING AGREEMENT 

 

THIS FUNDRAISING AGREEMENT (hereinafter “Agreement”), is made and entered into as of the 

______  day    of  ______________,  2014,  by  and  between Green  Circle  Renewables,  L.L.C.,  a 

North  Carolina  limited  liability  company  d/b/a  Green  Circle  NC  (hereinafter  “GCNC”),  and 

Durham Public Schools Board of Education  (hereinafter “Board”)  (hereinafter collectively “the 

Parties”). 

    

WHEREAS, GCNC operates Biodiesel 4 Schools, a fundraising program for North Carolina public 

school  systems  through which  a  portion  of  the  proceeds  of  the  sales  of  used  cooking  oil  is 

provided to participating school systems to support school operations as more fully described 

below; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Board is the governing body of the Durham Public Schools (“DPS”); and   

 

WHEREAS, GCNC and Board desire to participate  in the Program (hereinafter defined) to raise 

funds  for  DPS  from  the  collection  of  and/or  charitable  donation  of waste  cooking  oil  from 

Durham County restaurants and/or producers of waste cooking oil (the “Biodiesel 4 Schools for 

Durham Public Schools Program” or the “Program”); and  

 

WHEREAS,  the Parties agree  to use  reasonable efforts  to work  together  for  the  term of  this 

Agreement to raise funds for Biodiesel 4 Schools for Durham Public Schools. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE,  it  is agreed that  in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements 

hereinafter set forth, the Parties will do the following: 

 

A. Agreement Term: This Agreement shall run for three (3) years from the date of signing by the 

Parties  unless  sooner  terminated  as  herein  provided.  This  Agreement may  be  renewed  by 

mutual written agreement of the parties.  

 

B. Responsibilities of GCNC: GCNC will do the following: 

1. Use  reasonable  efforts  to  obtain  agreements  with  Durham  County 

restaurants/producers of waste  cooking oil  (“Participating Restaurants”)  for either 

the donation of or the purchase at a minimum cost of waste cooking oil. 

2. Provide  information and training to DPS school groups for their use  in approaching 

Durham County restaurants/producers of waste cooking oil regarding the donation 

of their waste cooking oil. 



March 2014 
 

2 
 

3. Provide  containers  to  the Participating Restaurants  for  the donation of  the waste 

cooking oil and the labor and equipment necessary for the collection and disposal of 

the waste cooking oil by GCNC. 

4. Provide containers  to Durham County Recycling Centers  for  the donation of waste 

cooking oil and the  labor and equipment for the collection of the waste cooking oil 

from the Recycling Centers.  

5. Use best efforts to obtain a fair market price for the sale of the waste cooking oil to 

biodiesel producer(s).  

6. Develop,  produce  and  provide  to  the  Participating  Restaurants  such 

marketing/public  relations materials about  the Program as are  requested and  that 

are deemed by the Parties to be reasonable. 

7. Reimburse DPS  for any  in‐house printing and/or other production costs of  for  the 

creation of letters, flyers, etc. regarding the Program.  

 

C. Responsibilities of DPS: DPS will do the following: 

1. Use reasonable efforts to create public awareness of the Program, including, but not 

limited  to, providing  letters  requesting participation  in  the Program,  including  the 

Program  on  the  DPS  website  and  in  the  available  social  media  (i.e.  Facebook, 

Twitter, You Tube, etc.) utilized by the Durham Public Schools, encouraging each DPS 

school to  include the Program on  its website, and encouraging community support 

through  and  by  educational  foundations,  educational  support  groups  and  other 

governmental agencies. 

2. Encourage  Durham  County  restaurants/waste  cooking  oil  producers  to  become 

Participating Restaurants in the Program.  

3. Review and approve (with such approval not to be unreasonably withheld) GCNC’s 

use of the names of the individual DPS schools, the school district and their logos in 

marketing/public  relations  materials  and  for  the  purpose  of  soliciting  the 

participation  of  restaurants/producers  of  waste  cooking  oil  in  the  Program  and 

recognizing Participating Restaurants. 

4. Provide Participating Restaurants with  a  thank  you  letter  for  their donated waste 

cooking oil. 

5. Utilize  DPS  in‐house  resources  to  print  marketing/public  relations  materials 

regarding the Program. 

D. Proceeds:  

1. GCNC shall pay to DPS a portion of the proceeds from the sale of waste cooking oil 

to biodiesel producer(s) at a rate of $0.25 per gallon, less expenses and costs in the 

amount of $7,500.00 per month, and less the cost of purchasing the waste cooking 



March 2014 
 

3 
 

oil  from  the  Participating  Restaurants  to  the  extent  any  waste  cooking  oil  is 

purchased. 

2. Proceeds to DPS shall be paid quarterly in arrears in the form of a check payable to 

the Durham Public Schools. Checks shall be submitted to such representative as DPS 

directs, and shall include an invoice outlining the source of the payment. 

3. If  at  any  time  during  the  term  of  this  Agreement  GCNC  acquires  the  necessary 

equipment  to produce ASTM grade biodiesel  from  the waste cooking oil  from  the 

Participating Restaurants, such purchase of biodiesel by DPS from GCNC, if any, shall 

be governed by a separate written agreement between the Parties. 

4. Nothing  in this Agreement shall be construed to create any right or entitlement on 

the part of GCNC to any compensation, or request for funding, from DPS or any DPS 

board member, officer, employee, parent or student. 

  

E. Termination: DPS may terminate this Agreement at its complete discretion upon ninety (90) 

calendar days' notice  in writing from DPS to GCNC prior to the date of termination.   DPS may 

terminate  this  Agreement  immediately  if  GCNC  breaches  any  material  provisions  of  this 

Agreement or if DPS is dissatisfied with the quality of services provided, and GCNC fails to cure 

such breach or dissatisfaction within fifteen (15) days of receipt by GCNC of notice from DPS of 

such breach or dissatisfaction.  If this Agreement  is terminated by DPS  in accordance with this 

Section, GCNC agrees to  immediately collect and destroy any promotional materials regarding 

the Program  from Participating Restaurants  and  cease  the use of  any promotional materials 

containing any DPS branding or logo.  

 

F. Effect of This Agreement: This Agreement shall be binding on and shall inure to the benefit of 

the Parties, and  their respective  legal representatives, agents, predecessors, successors, heirs 

and assigns. 

 

G. Liability/Indemnification:  Except for any claim or action arising from the gross negligence or 

wilful misconduct of DPS or the Board, GCNC agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Board 

and  its agents and employees  from and against all claims, actions, demands, costs, damages, 

losses, and/or expenses of any kind whatsoever resulting from the omission or commission of 

any act, lawful or unlawful, by GCNC or its agents and/or employees, including but not limited 

to court costs and attorney’s fees, incurred in connection with the defense of said matters.  The 

parties agree that this indemnification clause is an “evidence of indebtedness” for purposes of 

N. C. Gen.  Stat. § 6‐21.2.   GCNC  agrees  to maintain during  the  term of  this Agreement  and 

subsequent renewals at least a two (2) million dollar general liability insurance policy.    

 



March 2014 
 

4 
 

H. Monitoring  and  Auditing:   GCNC  shall  cooperate with  DPS,  or with  any  other  person  or 

agency  as  directed  by DPS,  in monitoring,  auditing,  or  investigating  activities  related  to  this 

Agreement.  GCNC shall provide auditors retained by DPS with reasonable access to any records 

and files related to the provision of services under this Agreement.  Except as disclosure may be 

required by law, DPS agrees that its auditors will maintain the confidentiality of any information 

of GCNC accessed during an audit conducted under this Agreement. 

 

I. Relationship of  the Parties: GCNC  shall be an  independent  contractor of DPS,  and nothing 

herein shall be construed as creating a partnership or joint venture; nor shall any employee of 

GCNC be construed as an employee, agent, or principal of DPS.  

 

J. No Third Party Beneficiary Rights: No third party may enforce or rely upon any obligation of, 

or  the  exercise  of  or  failure  to  exercise  any  right  of  either  Party  in  this  Agreement.  This 

Agreement is not intended to create any rights of a third party beneficiary. 

 

K.  Non‐Waiver:  No  waiver  or  breach  of  any  term  or  provision  of  this  Agreement  shall  be 

construed  to be or  shall be a waiver of any of  the  terms or a breach of  this Agreement. No 

waiver shall be binding unless  it  is  in writing and signed by the Party waiving the breach. The 

waiver, by either party, of a breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to 

be a waiver of any subsequent breach.  

L. Compliance with Applicable Laws: GCNC shall comply with all applicable laws and regulations 

in  providing  services  under  this  Agreement.    In  particular,  GCNC  shall  not  employ  any 

individuals  to  provide  services  to  the DPS  or  any  school  therein who  are  not  authorized  by 

federal law to work in the United States.  GCNC represents and warrants that it is aware of and 

in compliance with the Immigration Reform and Control Act and North Carolina law (Article 2 of 

Chapter  64  of  the North Carolina General  Statutes)  requiring  use  of  the  E‐Verify  system  for 

employers who employ  twenty‐five  (25) or more employees and  that  it  is and will  remain  in 

compliance with  these  laws at all  times while providing services pursuant  to  this Agreement.  

GCNC  shall also ensure  that any of  its  subcontractors  (of any  tier) will  remain  in  compliance 

with  these  laws  at  all  times while  providing  subcontracted  services  in  connection with  this 

Agreement.  GCNC is responsible for providing affordable health care coverage to all of its full‐

time employees providing services to DPS or any school therein.  The definitions of “affordable 

coverage”  and  “full‐time  employee”  are  governed  by  the  Affordable  Care  Act  and 

accompanying IRS and Treasury Department regulations. 

M.    Press  Release.    GCNC  and  DPS  agree  that  they will work  together  to  promptly  issue  a 

mutually agreeable joint press release after the execution of this Agreement.  In any event, DPS 

acknowledges and agrees that GCNC may make public the execution of this Agreement by GCNC 



March 2014 
 

5 
 

and the initiation of the Program.  DPS agrees that GCNC may include DPS's name and logo on a 

list of Program participants, which may be made public on GCNC's website.   

 

N.   Assignment: GCNC shall not assign, subcontract, or otherwise  transfer any  interest  in  this 

Agreement without the prior written approval of DPS.  

 

O.  Amendment:  This  Agreement may  be  amended,  altered,  changed  or modified  only  in  a 

writing signed by the Parties hereto. 

 

P. Section Headings: The section headings shall not be treated as part of this Agreement or as 

affecting  the meaning of  the provisions hereof. The  section headings are merely  for ease of 

reference. 

 

Q.  Authority  to  Enter  Contract:  By  their  authorized  signatures  the  Parties  certify  that  this 

Agreement has been read by their authorized representative(s), that they have consulted with 

their attorneys on  its meaning and  that  the Agreement  is  fully understood by  the authorized 

representatives signing the Agreement on behalf of the Parties. This Agreement is entered into 

freely  and  voluntarily.  The  Agreement  contains  provisions  and  terms  initiated  by  each  side. 

Accordingly,  the Parties acknowledge  that  this Agreement  shall not be  construed  in  favor or 

against any Party by reason of the manner in which it was drafted. 

 

R. Governing Law: This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the 

laws of the State of North Carolina. 

 

S. Invalid Provisions: Should any provision of this Agreement be declared invalid by 

any court of competent  jurisdiction, said provisions shall be deleted from this Agreement and 

the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby. 

 

T.  Acknowledgement:  The  undersigned  further  represent  and  acknowledge  that  the 

undersigned has read the terms of this Agreement in its entirety, fully understand its contents 

and  effect  and without duress or  coercion  knowingly  and  voluntarily  agree  to  its  terms  and 

conditions. 

 

U. Entire Agreement: This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding between the Parties 

and  merge  all  prior  oral  negotiations.  This  Agreement  is  not  to  be  modified  except  by 

subsequent written instrument executed by the Parties to the modification. 

 



March 2014 
 

6 
 

V. Notices: All notices required or permitted by this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be 

either personally delivered or sent by nationally‐recognized overnight courier or by registered 

or certified U.S. mail, postage prepaid, addressed as set forth below (except that a party may 

from time to time give notice changing the address for this purpose). A notice shall be effective 

on  the  date  personally  delivered,  on  the  date  delivered  by  nationally‐recognized  overnight 

courier, or upon the date set forth for the receipt of registered or certified mail. 

 

To GCNC at:         Green Circle NC, LLC 

65 Glen Road, Ste 177 

Garner, North Carolina 27529 

 

To DPS at:         Durham Public Schools 

511 Cleveland St. 

Durham, NC 27702 

 

Remainder of page intentionally left blanks. Signature page follows. 

   



March 2014 
 

7 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have hereunto set their hands and seals the day and year 

first indicated above. 

 

GREEN CIRCLE RENEWABLES, L.L.C. 

By: __________________________________ 

  

____________________________, member 

(Print Name) 

 

 

 

DURHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

By: Heidi Carter 

Chair, Durham Public Schools Board of Education 

 

Attest: 

 

______________________________________ 

Hugh Osteen, Interim Superintendent 



                                                                                     March 13, 2014 

Durham Public Schools 
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES COMMITTEE 

 PRECIS 
 
Agenda Item:  Child Nutrition Services – Flavored Milk Update 

 
Staff Liaison Present: Hugh Osteen Phone #   560-3831 
 James Keaten    560-2370 
 G. Scott Denton    560-3822 

 

Main Points: 
 

 Federal regulations require that Child Nutrition Services (CNS) offer milk with two 
levels of fat at breakfast and lunch.  Under North Carolina regulations, milk offered in 
schools must be either low-fat (1%) or fat-free (skim).   

 
 CNS currently offers students unflavored low-fat and unflavored fat-free milk at 

breakfast and lunch in order to meet these minimum requirements.  CNS added organic, 
lactose-free soy milk for the 2013-2014 school year. 
 

 Fat-free flavored milk is no longer available for breakfast. Effective July 2014, 
strawberry fat-free milk will be removed from the lunch menu. 
 

CNS will continue offering chocolate fat-free milk only at lunch in order to ensure adequate 
nutrition for students. CNS submits this progress update for the Board’s information. 

 
Fiscal Implications: 
 

 CNS will seek progress on all aspects of this issue. 
  

Strategic Plan Alignment: 

 Goal IV.2: DPS will enhance processes and practices in all business environments 
 Goal IV.4: DPS will enhance the Child Nutrition Services program delivery model to 

support student health and wellness, as measured by national nutrition standards. 
 
 

Purpose    

Information    Discussion    Action    Consent    

Reviewed by:  Finance __________      Attorney ____________

 



1 

March 2014 
 
 

Executive Summary: Flavored Milk Update 
 

All milk contains a unique combination of essential nutrients important for growth and 
development.  Milk contains nine essential nutrients – calcium, potassium, phosphorus, 
protein, vitamins A, D, and B12, riboflavin and niacin.  Milk is the number one food 
source for three of the four nutrients of concern identified by the 2010 Dietary Guidelines 
for Americans: calcium, vitamin D and potassium.  
 
Flavored milk drinkers consume more milk than exclusively white milk drinkers.  
Offering flavored fat-free milk can help increase milk consumption and boost overall 
participation in the school meal programs.  Flavored milk contains the same nine 
essential nutrients as white milk. 
 
Chocolate is the most popular flavor of milk in schools nationwide, accounting for 66% 
of all milk consumption.  Removing all flavored milk from schools has been shown to 
result in reductions of milk consumption by 62-63 percent for elementary schools, 50 
percent for middle schools and 37 percent for high schools.   
 
Studies from the American Heart Association show that flavored milk drinkers do not 
have higher body mass index (BMI), do not consume more calories and do not consume 
more fat than unflavored milk drinkers.  In addition, the studies documented that small 
amounts of sugar added to nutrient-dense foods such as flavored milk help enhance the 
palatability of foods without contributing excessive calories. 
 
The current flavored milk products served by CNS are specially formulated to contain 
NO High Fructose Corn Syrup and conform to the Alliance for a Healthier Generation’s 
recommendations of no more than 150 calories per 8 ounces.   
 
Currently, CNS serves fat-free and skim unflavored milk at breakfast.  In addition, CNS 
serves fat-free flavored milk only at lunch.  Organic, lactose free, unflavored soy milk is 
offered at both meals.   
 
Milk Type Aug. – Dec. Daily Average Jan. – Feb. Daily Average 
Skim Unflavored 958 718 
Fat Free Unflavored 3,120 2,371 
Fat Free Strawberry 2,270 2,434 
Fat Free Chocolate 9,467 11,166 
Total 15,815 16,689 
 
The national average of chocolate milk consumption is 66%.  Prior to the elimination of 
flavored milk at breakfast, Durham Public Schools averaged 59.9% chocolate milk 
consumption.  Since the elimination of flavored milk at breakfast, that average has 
increased to 66.9%. 



 

A

Agenda
 

Staff Li
 
  

 
Main P

 P
pr
d

 B
re

 
Scoti
Cary
 

 
Administ
subseque
 
Fiscal I

This con
and all re
 
Strateg

III.4 – Im
 

Purpo

Inform

Review

 

ADMINS

a Item: Low

iaison Pre
 
 

Points: 

ublic Schoo
rovide for t
eteriorated f

 
Bids were re
esponsive, re

ia Constructi
, NC 

tration subm
ent approval.

Implicatio

tract is with
equired affid

gic Plan Al

mplement edu

se 

mation   

wed by: 

              

Du
STRAT

wes Grove M

esent: Hu
 Ev
  

ol Building 
track improv
field events a

ceived on F
esponsible b

ion 

mits this bi
. 

ns: 

hin the projec
davits were s

lignment: 

ucational sp

 D

 F

                   

urham P
TIVE S

 PR
Middle Scho

ugh Osteen
via Nelson 

 

Capital Fu
vements tha
and equipme

February 18,
idder is: 

d informati

ct budget.  M
submitted by

ecifications 

 

Discussion

Finance  A

                   

Public S
SERVIC
RECIS
ool – Bids for

 
 

unds combin
at include re
ent, fencing 

 2014 from 

      

  

on and the 

Minority Bus
y the contrac

for designin

n    

Aaron Beauli

                   

Schools
CES CO
S 

r Track Imp

 P
 

ned with re
esurfacing o
and irrigatio

five (5) qu

                  
A

                  

 proposed 

siness Enter
tor. 

ng and renov

 

Action  

ieu     A

Date:  Mar

s 
OMMI

rovements 

Phone # 56
     56

eallocated 20
of the track
on.   

ualified bidd

      Base Bi
Alternates 1-

            Tota

contract for

rprise partici

vating school

  C

Attorney _R

rch 13, 2014

ITTEE

60-3831 
60-2216  

007 Bond f
k, replaceme

ers.  The lo

id: $169,00
-7: $  77,00
al: $246,00

r discussion

ipation is 20

l facilities. 

 

Consent  

Rod Malone

4  

 

funds 
ent of 

owest, 

00.00
00.00
00.00

n and 

0.78% 

  



BID TABULATIONS
Lowes Grove Middle School - Track Improvements
Bid Date: Tuesday, February 18, 2014
Time: 2:00 PM

Durham Public Schools

*1 Scotia Construction Y 6481 169,000$   11,000$     27,000$     6,000$       4,000$       23,000$     4,000$       2,000$       2,500$       No Bid 51,000$     299,500$   

2 Bar Construction Y 7873 185,705$   11,091$     15,937$     6,628$       6,507$       22,749$     3,487$       1,585$       3,000$       No Bid 62,000$     318,689$   

3 Bordeaux Construction Y 9226-U 199,900$   10,300$     26,800$     6,140$       6,000$       21,000$     3,200$       1,500$       2,000$       6,800$       49,000$     332,640$   

4 Riggs Harrod Construction Y 18667 187,060$   11,187$     30,160$     6,594$       6,467$       22,333$     3,616$       1,740$       2,048$       10,550$     53,128$     334,883$   

5 S&S Construction Y 61690 217,803$   10,429$     33,144$     6,039$       5,948$       22,496$     5,133$       2,700$       3,031$       8,700$       49,000$     364,423$   

* Apparent lowest responsible, responsive bidder.

Alternate No. 1: Add to provide additional asphalt paving on outside edges of track at North, South and West quadrants of track.
Alternate No. 2: Add to provide expanded irrigation system at football field.
Alternate No. 3: Add to demolish and replace existing softball backstop. 
Alternate No. 4: Add to demolish and replace existing batting cages.
Alternate No. 5: Add to demolish and replace 6' perimeter chain link fence at baseball field.
Alternate No. 6: Add to demolish and replace 6' chain link fence along softball field, 3rd base side.
Alternate No. 7: Add to demolish and replace 4' chain link fence at track. 
Alternate No. 8: Add to install manually operated scoreboard at softball field.
Alternate No. 9: Add to install electronic scoreboard at soccer/track/football field.
Alternate No. 10: Add to sod the inside of the soccer/track/football field. 

I (We) hereby certify that this is a true and accurate tabulation of bids received this day,
for the above project.

Signed:____________________________________ Date:________________________

ALTERNATE
NO. 10

ALTERNATE
NO. 1

ALTERNATE
NO. 5

ALTERNATE
NO. 6

ALTERNATE
NO. 7

ALTERNATE
NO. 8

ALTERNATE
NO. 9

TOTAL
BID 

Durham Public Schools
2011 Hamlin Road
Durham, NC  27704

(919) 560-2216     Fax:  (919) 560-9119

ALTERNATE
NO. 2

ALTERNATE
NO. 3

GENERAL CONTRACTORS MWBE
FORM

LICENSE
NUMBER

BASE
BID

ALTERNATE
NO. 4

1



NORTH CAROLINA 
DURHAM COUNTY 

2 

 

OWNER-CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT 
 

Durham County 
Lowes Grove Middle School – Track Improvements 

 
 THIS AGREEMENT, is made this 27th day of March in the year of 2014 by and 
between the Durham County, by and through its authorized agent the Durham 
Public Schools Board of Education (herein referred to as the "Owner"), whose 
mailing address for purposes of this agreement shall be, Construction & Capital 
Planning, 2011 Hamlin Road, Durham, North Carolina 27704 and Scotia 
Construction Inc. SS/EID #56-1017437 (herein referred to as the "Contractor"), whose 
mailing address is 956 West Chatham Street, Cary, North Carolina, 27511. All 
correspondence, submittals, and notices relating to or required under this Contract shall 
be sent in writing to the above addresses; unless either party is notified in writing by the 
other, of a change in address. 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 
WHEREAS, it is the intent of the Owner to obtain the services of the Contractor in 
connection with the Scope of Work for Lowes Grove Middle School – Track 
Improvements (DPS project 346-02, documents dated February 6, 2014) hereinafter 
referred to as the "Project" or the "Work"; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Contractor desires to perform such construction in accordance 
with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises made herein and other 
good and valuable consideration, the following terms and conditions are hereby 
mutually agreed to, by and between the Owner and Contractor: 

 
Article 1 

DEFINITIONS 
 
1.1 All terms in this Agreement which are defined in the Information for Bidders and 

the General Conditions shall have the meanings designated therein. 
 
1.2 The Contract Documents are as defined in the General Conditions provided with 

the Information to Bidders.  Such documents form the Contract, and all are as 
fully a part thereof as if attached to this Agreement or repeated herein. 

 
Article 2 

STATEMENT OF THE WORK 
 



NORTH CAROLINA 
DURHAM COUNTY 

3 

 

2.1 The Contractor shall provide and pay for all materials, tools, equipment, labor 
and professional and non-professional services, and shall perform all other acts 
and supply all other things necessary, to fully and properly perform and complete 
the Work, as required by the Contract Documents. 

 
2.2 The Contractor shall further provide and pay for all related facilities described in 

any of the Contract Documents, including all work expressly specified therein 
and such additional work as may be reasonably inferred therefrom, saving and 
excepting only such items of work as are specifically stated in the Contract 
Documents not to be the obligation of the Contractor. The totality of the 
obligations imposed upon the contractor by this Article and by all other 
provisions of the Contract Documents, as well as the structures to be built and 
the labor to be performed, is herein referred to as the "Work". 

 
Article 3 

DESIGN CONSULTANT 
 
3.1 The Design Consultant (as defined in the General Conditions) is CLH Design, 

PA, 400 Regency Forest Drive, Suite 120, Cary, North Carolina 27518. 
 

Article 4 
TIME OF COMMENCEMENT AND COMPLETION 

 
4.1 The Contractor shall commence the Work promptly upon the date established in 

the Notice to Proceed.  If there is no Notice to Proceed, the date of 
commencement of the Work shall be the date of this Agreement or such other 
date as may be established herein. 

 
4.2 Time is of the essence.  The Contractor shall achieve Final Completion, as 

defined in the Specifications on or before the date established for Final 
Completion. 

 
4.3 The Specifications contains certain specific dates that shall be adhered to and 

are the last acceptable dates unless modified in writing by mutual agreement 
between the Contractor and the Owner.  All dates indicate midnight unless 
otherwise stipulated.   

  
4.4 Should the Contractor fail to complete the Work on or before the dates stipulated 

for Substantial Completion and/or Final Completion (or such later date as may 
result from an extension of time granted by the Owner), he shall pay the Owner, 
as liquidated damages the sums set forth in the General Conditions.  

 
Article 5 

CONTRACT SUM 
 



NORTH CAROLINA 
DURHAM COUNTY 

4 

 

5.1 Provided that the Contractor shall strictly and completely perform all of its 
obligations under the Contract Documents, and subject only to additions and 
deductions by Modification or as otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, 
the Owner shall pay to the Contractor, in current funds and at the time and in the 
installments hereinafter specified, the maximum sum of Two Hundred Forty Six 
Thousand Dollars ($246,000.00) herein referred to as the "Contract Sum".  The 
Contract Sum includes the base bid work as specified in the bidding documents 
and accepted Alternates 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 and 7. 

 
Article 6 

PROGRESS PAYMENTS 
 
6.1 The Contractor hereby agrees that on or about the First day of the month for 

every month during the performance of the Work he will deliver to the Owner's 
Project Manager an Application for Payment in accordance with the provisions of 
the General Conditions.  This date may be changed upon mutual agreement, 
stated in writing, between the Owner and Contractor.  Payment under this 
Contract shall be made as provided in the General Conditions. 

 
Article 7 

OTHER REQUIREMENTS 
 
7.1 The Contractor shall submit the Performance Bond, Labor and Material Payment 

Bond and Certification of Insurance as required by the Contract Documents. 
 
7.2 The Owner shall furnish to the Contractor drawings and specifications as 

outlined in the General Conditions.  Additional sets of drawings or specifications 
may be obtained by the Contractor by paying the Owner for the costs of 
reproduction, handling and mailing. 

 
7.3 The Contractor will make a good faith effort to utilize Minority Business 

Enterprises (MBEs) per N.C. Gen. Stat. 143-128 as subcontractors in the 
performance of this contract. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Durham County, by and through its authorized agent the 
Durham Public Schools Board of Education (hereinbefore called the "Owner") has 
caused these presents to be signed by and through its authorized agent the Durham 
Public Schools Board of Education pursuant to the Interlocal Agreement between the 
Owner and the Durham Public Schools, and Scotia Construction Inc. (hereinbefore 
called "Contractor") has caused these presents to be signed by its President and its 
Corporate seal to be hereunto affixed, as hereinafter attested, all as of the day and year 
first above written. 
 
Durham County 
By and through its authorized agent the Durham Public Schools Board of Education 
 



NORTH CAROLINA 
DURHAM COUNTY 

5 

 

  
    ______________________________________________ 
Heidi Carter, Chair, Durham Public Schools Board of Education 
  

        
This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the School Budget and 
Fiscal Control Act. 
 
 
    _________________________________ 
Aaron Beaulieu, Chief Financial Officer, Durham Public Schools  
 

 

 

 
This contract was approved by the Board on the 27th day of March, 2014. 
 
 
Scotia Construction Inc. 
 
 
By:       ____________________________________________ 
 
 
Name/Title:          
 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF DURHAM 
 

I, a Notary Public in and for the aforesaid County and State, do hereby certify that 
____________________ personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged 
that he/she is _____________ of _________________________., a 
_________________ (state of incorporation) corporation, duly authorized to do 
business in the state of North Carolina, and that by authority duly given and as the act 
of the corporation, the foregoing instrument was signed in its name by its ________ , 
sealed with its corporate seal and attested by ___________________ as its Corporate 
Secretary.  

 
Witness my hand and notarial seal this        day of                   , 2014.     
 
____________________________________  (SEAL/STAMP) 

Notary Public 
 

Endorsement: 
 ______________________ 
 Executive Director 
 Durham Public Schools 
 Construction & Capital Planning 



NORTH CAROLINA 
DURHAM COUNTY 

6 

 

My commission expires:_________ 
 



 

A

Agenda

 
Staff Li
 
  

 
Main P

 R
re

 B
re

 
Bord
Durh
 

 
Administ
subseque
 
Fiscal I

This con
and all re
 
Strateg

III.4 – Im
 

Purpo

Inform

Review

 

ADMINS

a Item: Ho
    Sec

iaison Pre
 
 

Points: 

Reallocated 2
eplacement o

 
Bids were rec
esponsive, re

deaux Constr
ham, NC 

tration subm
ent approval.

Implicatio

tract is with
equired affid

gic Plan Al

mplement edu

se 

mation   

wed by: 

              

Du
STRAT

pe Valley El
curity Upgra

esent: Hu
 Ev
  

2007 Bond fu
of the interco

ceived on F
esponsible b

ruction Co., I

mits this bi
. 

ns: 

hin the projec
davits were s

lignment: 

ucational sp

 D

 F

                   

urham P
TIVE S

 PR
lementary S

ades 

ugh Osteen
via Nelson 

 

funds provide
om system. 

ebruary 18, 
idder is: 

Inc.  

d informati

ct budget.  M
submitted by

ecifications 

 

Discussion

Finance A

                   

Public S
SERVIC
RECIS
chool – Bids

 
 

e for asphalt

2014 from 

      

  

on and the 

Minority Bus
y the contrac

for designin

n    

Aaron Beaulie

                   

Schools
CES CO
S 
s for Asphal

 P
 

t paving, AD

eight (8) qu

                  
Altern

                  

 proposed 

siness Enter
tor. 

ng and renov

 

Action  

eu      A

Date:  Mar

s 
OMMI

lt Paving, AD

Phone # 56
     56

DA and secur

ualified bidd

      Base Bi
nates 1,3,4,6
            Tota

contract for

rprise partici

vating school

  C

Attorney Ro

rch 13, 2014

ITTEE

DA &  

60-3831 
60-2216  

rity upgrade

ders.  The lo

id: $363,40
6,7 $  21,05
al: $384,45

r discussion

ipation is 25

l facilities. 

 

Consent  

od Malone 

4  

 

es and 

owest, 

00.00
50.00
50.00

n and 

.18% 

  



BID TABULATIONS
Hope Valley Elementary School - Asphalt Paving, ADA Life Safety Upgrades
Bid Date: Tuesday, February 18, 2014
Time: 3:00 PM

Durham Public Schools

*1 J. Wayne Poole Y 8553 363,300.00$     2,830.00$         4,260.00$         14,080.00$       -$                  -$                  -$                  650.00$            385,120.00$     

**2 Bordeaux Construction Y 9266-U 363,400.00$     1,000.00$         11,830.00$       12,850.00$       -$                  -$                  6,200.00$         1,000.00$         396,280.00$     

3 Riggs-Harrod Builders Y 18667 371,041.00$     3,100.00$         11,000.00$       13,875.00$       -$                  -$                  7,500.00$         812.00$            407,328.00$     

4 Bar Construction Y 7973 391,750.00$     2,000.00$         5,600.00$         15,600.00$       -$                  -$                  7,900.00$         820.00$            423,670.00$     

5 L.A. Downey & Son Y 1774 393,933.00$     2,946.00$         4,433.00$         15,565.00$       -$                  -$                  6,635.00$         1,500.00$         425,012.00$     

6 Progressive Service Y 36100 388,700.00$     2,200.00$         10,000.00$       15,500.00$       -$                  19,500.00$       -$                  1,700.00$         437,600.00$     

7 H.M. Kern Corporation Y 8542 433,000.00$     2,700.00$         5,400.00$         12,800.00$       -$                  -$                  6,200.00$         800.00$            460,900.00$     

8 C.T. Wilson Construction Y 2443 438,624.00$     740.00$            8,214.00$         13,497.00$       -$                  -$                  6,264.00$         783.00$            468,122.00$     

* Low bid was deemed non-responsive and rejected. 
** Apparent lowest responsible, responsive bidder.

Alternate No. 1: Add to provide paved playground markings.
Alternate No. 2: Add to replace acoustical ceiling tiles in existing grid and reinstall ceiling devices (Cafeteria).
Alternate No. 3: Add to replace door hardware on doors 102.1, 508.1, 512.2 and 516 (double door at Cafeteria, Media Center and Gym).
Alternate No. 4: Add to provide door hardware cylinders by Best. (preferred brand alternate)
Alternate No. 5: Add to provide Telecor XL intercom system. (preferred brand alternate)
Alternate No. 6: Add to provide Valcom intercom system. (preferred brand alternate)
Alternate No. 7: Add to install a concealed panic button at Main Office. 

I (We) hereby certify that this is a true and accurate tabulation of bids received this day,
for the above project.

Signed:____________________________________ Date:________________________

ALTERNATE
NO. 6

ALTERNATE
NO. 4

Durham Public Schools
2011 Hamlin Road
Durham, NC  27704

(919) 560-2216     Fax:  (919) 560-9119

GENERAL CONTRACTORS
MWBE
FORM

LICENSE
NUMBER

BASE
BID

ALTERNATE
NO. 1

TOTAL
BID 

ALTERNATE
NO. 2

ALTERNATE
NO. 7

ALTERNATE
NO. 3

ALTERNATE
NO. 5

1



NORTH CAROLINA 
DURHAM COUNTY 

2 

 

OWNER-CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT 
 

Durham County 
Hope Valley Elementary School – Asphalt Paving, ADA & Life Safety Upgrades 

 
 THIS AGREEMENT, is made this 27th day of March in the year of 2014 by and 
between the Durham County, by and through its authorized agent the Durham 
Public Schools Board of Education (herein referred to as the "Owner"), whose 
mailing address for purposes of this agreement shall be, Construction & Capital 
Planning, 2011 Hamlin Road, Durham, North Carolina 27704 and Bordeaux 
Construction Co., Inc. SS/EID #56-1188790 (herein referred to as the "Contractor"), 
whose mailing address is 100 E. Britania Avenue, Durham, North Carolina 27704.  
All correspondence, submittals, and notices relating to or required under this Contract 
shall be sent in writing to the above addresses; unless either party is notified in writing 
by the other, of a change in address. 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 
WHEREAS, it is the intent of the Owner to obtain the services of the Contractor in 
connection with the Scope of Work for Hope Valley Elementary School – Asphalt 
Paving, ADA & Life Safety Upgrades (DPS project 327-01, documents dated 
January 27, 2014) hereinafter referred to as the "Project" or the "Work"; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Contractor desires to perform such construction in accordance 
with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises made herein and other 
good and valuable consideration, the following terms and conditions are hereby 
mutually agreed to, by and between the Owner and Contractor: 

 
Article 1 

DEFINITIONS 
 
1.1 All terms in this Agreement which are defined in the Information for Bidders and 

the General Conditions shall have the meanings designated therein. 
 
1.2 The Contract Documents are as defined in the General Conditions provided with 

the Information to Bidders.  Such documents form the Contract, and all are as 
fully a part thereof as if attached to this Agreement or repeated herein. 

 
Article 2 

STATEMENT OF THE WORK 
 



NORTH CAROLINA 
DURHAM COUNTY 

3 

 

2.1 The Contractor shall provide and pay for all materials, tools, equipment, labor 
and professional and non-professional services, and shall perform all other acts 
and supply all other things necessary, to fully and properly perform and complete 
the Work, as required by the Contract Documents. 

 
2.2 The Contractor shall further provide and pay for all related facilities described in 

any of the Contract Documents, including all work expressly specified therein 
and such additional work as may be reasonably inferred therefrom, saving and 
excepting only such items of work as are specifically stated in the Contract 
Documents not to be the obligation of the Contractor. The totality of the 
obligations imposed upon the contractor by this Article and by all other 
provisions of the Contract Documents, as well as the structures to be built and 
the labor to be performed, is herein referred to as the "Work". 

 
Article 3 

DESIGN CONSULTANT 
 
3.1 The Design Consultant (as defined in the General Conditions) is Davis Kane 

Architects, P.A., 503 Oberlin Road, Suite 300, Raleigh, North Carolina, 
27605. 

 
Article 4 

TIME OF COMMENCEMENT AND COMPLETION 
 
4.1 The Contractor shall commence the Work promptly upon the date established in 

the Notice to Proceed.  If there is no Notice to Proceed, the date of 
commencement of the Work shall be the date of this Agreement or such other 
date as may be established herein. 

 
4.2 Time is of the essence.  The Contractor shall achieve Final Completion, as 

defined in the Specifications on or before the date established for Final 
Completion. 

 
4.3 The Specifications contains certain specific dates that shall be adhered to and 

are the last acceptable dates unless modified in writing by mutual agreement 
between the Contractor and the Owner.  All dates indicate midnight unless 
otherwise stipulated.   

  
4.4 Should the Contractor fail to complete the Work on or before the dates stipulated 

for Substantial Completion and/or Final Completion (or such later date as may 
result from an extension of time granted by the Owner), he shall pay the Owner, 
as liquidated damages the sums set forth in the General Conditions.  

 
Article 5 

CONTRACT SUM 
 



NORTH CAROLINA 
DURHAM COUNTY 

4 

 

5.1 Provided that the Contractor shall strictly and completely perform all of its 
obligations under the Contract Documents, and subject only to additions and 
deductions by Modification or as otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, 
the Owner shall pay to the Contractor, in current funds and at the time and in the 
installments hereinafter specified, the maximum sum of Three hundred eighty 
four thousand four hundred fifty dollars ($384,450.00) herein referred to as 
the "Contract Sum".  The Contract Sum includes the base bid work as specified 
in the bidding documents and accepted Alternates 1, 3, 4, 6 and 7.   

 
Article 6 

PROGRESS PAYMENTS 
 
6.1 The Contractor hereby agrees that on or about the First day of the month for 

every month during the performance of the Work he will deliver to the Owner's 
Project Manager an Application for Payment in accordance with the provisions of 
the General Conditions.  This date may be changed upon mutual agreement, 
stated in writing, between the Owner and Contractor.  Payment under this 
Contract shall be made as provided in the General Conditions. 

 
Article 7 

OTHER REQUIREMENTS 
 
7.1 The Contractor shall submit the Performance Bond, Labor and Material Payment 

Bond and Certification of Insurance as required by the Contract Documents. 
 
7.2 The Owner shall furnish to the Contractor drawings and specifications as 

outlined in the General Conditions.  Additional sets of drawings or specifications 
may be obtained by the Contractor by paying the Owner for the costs of 
reproduction, handling and mailing. 

 
7.3 The Contractor will make a good faith effort to utilize Minority Business 

Enterprises (MBEs) per N.C. Gen. Stat. 143-128 as subcontractors in the 
performance of this contract. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Durham County, by and through its authorized agent the 
Durham Public Schools Board of Education (hereinbefore called the "Owner") has 
caused these presents to be signed by and through its authorized agent the Durham 
Public Schools Board of Education pursuant to the Interlocal Agreement between the 
Owner and the Durham Public Schools, and Bordeaux Construction Co, Inc. 
(hereinbefore called "Contractor") has caused these presents to be signed by its 
President and its Corporate seal to be hereunto affixed, as hereinafter attested, all as of 
the day and year first above written. 
 
Durham County 
By and through its authorized agent the Durham Public Schools Board of Education 
 



NORTH CAROLINA 
DURHAM COUNTY 

5 

 

  
    ______________________________________________ 
Heidi Carter, Chair, Durham Public Schools Board of Education 
  

        
This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the School Budget and 
Fiscal Control Act. 
 
 
    _________________________________ 
Aaron Beaulieu, Chief Financial Officer, Durham Public Schools  
 

 

 

 
This contract was approved by the Board on the 27th day of March, 2014. 
 
 
Bordeaux Construction Co., Inc. 
 
 
By:       ____________________________________________ 
 
 
Name/Title:          
 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF DURHAM 
 

I, a Notary Public in and for the aforesaid County and State, do hereby certify that 
____________________ personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged 
that he/she is _____________ of _________________________., a 
_________________ (state of incorporation) corporation, duly authorized to do 
business in the state of North Carolina, and that by authority duly given and as the act 
of the corporation, the foregoing instrument was signed in its name by its ________ , 
sealed with its corporate seal and attested by ___________________ as its Corporate 
Secretary.  

 
Witness my hand and notarial seal this        day of                   , 2014.     
 
____________________________________  (SEAL/STAMP) 

Notary Public 
 

Endorsement: 
 ______________________ 
 Executive Director 
 Durham Public Schools 
 Construction & Capital Planning 



NORTH CAROLINA 
DURHAM COUNTY 

6 

 

My commission expires:_________ 
 



 

A

Agenda
 
Staff Li
 
 
Main P
 
 The 

appro
budg
proje

 
* 
* 
* 

            * 
 
 Utiliz

staff 
 
Administ
 
Fiscal I
 
The 201
balanced
 
Strateg
 
None. 
 

Purpo

Inform

Review

 

ADMINS

a Item:  20

iaison Pre
 

Points: 

2014-15 bu
oved by the 
et together. 
cting the exp

FY 2014-15
FY 2014-15
Projections 
Projections 

zation of lap
is working o

tration subm

Implicatio

4-15 Budge
d local curren

gic Plan Al

se 

mation   

wed by: 

             

Du
STRAT

14-15 Budg

esent: Aa
 Pau

udget develo
Board.  Doc
 The follow

penses assoc

5 Planning A
5 Non-salary
of Fixed Co
of State Ma

pse salary do
on recommen

mits the attach

ns: 

et Developm
nt expense bu

lignment: 

 D

 F

                   

urham P
TIVE S

PR
et Developm

aron Beaulieu
ul LeSieur 

opment is d
cumentation
wing items 
ciated with th

Allotment St
y School All
ost and Inflat
andates to Co

ollars is proj
ndations to t

hed for infor

ment proces
udget to the 

 

Discussion

Finance __

                   

Public S
SERVIC
RECIS
ment  

u 
 

driven by th
n is continuo

provide inf
he local curr

affing Formu
otments. 
tionary Incre
over Salary a

ected to be 
the Board. 

rmation. 

s allows th
County Com

n    

_________

                   

Schools
CES CO
S 

Phone#
 

he Budget P
ously update
formation th
rent expense

mulas. 

eases.  
and Benefit 

available for

he Board to
mmissioners

 

Action  

_      At

 Date:  Mar

s 
OMMI

#  560-3
560-3

Priorities/Gu
d and adjust

hat is used f
e budget. 

Increases. 

r the current

o work towa
s by May 15,

  C

ttorney ___

rch 13, 2014

ITTEE

3544 
3635 

uiding Princ
ted as we pu
for planning

t school yea

ard submitti
, 2014. 

 

Consent  

________

4 

ciples 
ut the 
g and 

ar and 

ing a 

  



511 Cleveland Street – P. O. Box 30002 - Durham, NC  27702 – (919) 560-3664 – Fax 560-2373 
 

       
 
 

2014-15 Budget Priorities/Guiding Principles 
 

 Provide funding that directly impacts our students and teachers. 

 

 Provide accurate projections of student membership. 

 

 Maintain current funding level in county appropriation. 

 
 Maintain current staffing formulas across the district and continue our investment in 

classroom teachers and staff. 

 
 Maintain current non‐salary allotments to individual schools. 

 

 Reduce the dependency on lapsed salaries to balance the budget. 

 
 Reduce the dependency on committed fund balance to cover salary and benefits. 

 
 Absorb within current resources any fixed cost and inflationary increases for 

operational expenses. 

 
 Absorb within current resources any increased enrollment within Durham Public 

Schools. 

 
 Absorb within current resources any increases in charter school growth. 

 
 Absorb any state mandates to cover salary and benefit increases. 

 
 Review all contracts within the district for appropriateness and potential savings. 

 
 Review all operational expenditures to maximize efficiency and potential savings. 

 

 

1 

 

Financial Services 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 



Durham Public Schools
FY 2014-15          
Planning Allotment Staffing Formulas

Instructional Personnel and Support Services

Description

  Classroom Teachers (new formulas based on Equity Model) For Allotment

Elementary School F&R Lunch %          K-3         4-5
Tier 1 91-100 17.0          21.0          
Tier 2 81-90 18.0          21.5          
Tier 3 61-80 18.0          22.5          
Tier 4 41-60 19.0          23.0          
Tier 5 0-40 21.0          24.0          

Middle School Teacher/ADM
6-8  1 per 21.0          ADM

High School Teacher/ADM
9-10  1 per 24.0          ADM
10-12  1 per 26.0          ADM
DSA  1 per 21.0          

Special Teachers - Art, Music, PE & Foreign Language for K-5  

Adjust the ratios from K-5 Classroom Teachers for  Special Teachers:

Tier 1 91-100 20.0          22.5          
Tier 2 81-90 21.0          23.0          
Tier 3 61-80 21.0          24.0          
Tier 4 41-60 22.0          24.5          
Tier 5 0-40 24.0          25.5          

  Teacher Assistants
K-2  1 per 28.0 ADM
Special TA Allocations: 8 Additional positions for Montessori Magnet Schools due to 
instructional needs: 
(6 positions for George Watts  and 2 positions for Morehead).
A fixed allocation of 6 Positions for Lakeview Program
1 base position for Hospital School.

Funding Factors 

Special Teachers able to teach up to 7 sections per day - 5-day rotation. Allotment to cover 4 

2



FY 2014-15          
Planning Allotment Staffing Formulas

  Instructional Support Guidance Media
1-499 1 1
500-749 1.5
750-999 2 2
1000-1249 2.5
1250-1499 3
1500-1749 4
1750+ 5
*=1 each additional 250 ADM
Notes:
No Guidance allotment for Lakeview Program, 700 Schools, & Hospital school.
Extra 1 position for High school  for formerly called Drop-out Prevention Counselor except Early or Middle College HS, and 
City of Medicine.
Lakeview is fixed as 2 positions & DSA Received an additional 0.5 Counselor position due to grade span issues (grades 6-12)
No Media Coordinator allotment for Early college, Middle College, 700 schools, & Performing Learning Center.
Hospital school receives 1 base Media Coordinator position.

  AIG Teachers
K-5                         19% total ADM   1 per 100 ADM or
Middle schools        19% total ADM   1 per 200 ADM and
AIG April Headcount   1 per 100 HC
Program Director will adjust as necessary based on schools actual needs. 

  LEP/ESL Teachers
Prior year October LEP Headcount   1 per 50 HC
Program Director will adjust as necessary based on schools actual needs. 

Strings Teachers
Schools offering "strings" instruction through their Music program, currently capped at  4  FTE .

Athletic Directors
Regular High Schools and DSA only 0.5 per school

ROTC
High school with the ROTC Program (3 schools at 2 positions each)

3



FY 2014-15          
Planning Allotment Staffing Formulas

  School Building Administration
        Principals   1 per School

Assistant Principals (New formulas)
Elementary

0-349 0
350-1000 1
1001-1659 1.5

Middle
0-375 0
376-582 1
583-1165 2
1166-1749 3
1750+ 4

High School
0-375 0
376-900 1
901-1100 2
1101-1649 3
1650-1859 4
1900+ 5

  Noninstructional Support Personnel
        K-5      ((ADM-325)/ 30 + 24) 30
        6-8       ((ADM-300)/ 26.5+ 42) 42
        9-12     ((ADM-300)/ 26.5 + 36) 54
        DSA  will use the 9-12 formula

Months of Employment fund the following types of positions : Secretaries, NCWISE Administrators,  School Treasures, and 
Office Support.

Special Allocations: Additional MOEs for the following schools:
Additional MOEs for Wellness Centers at t:  Glenn(11), Watt(6), Merrick-Moore(5), Oak Grove(5), 
EK Powe(6), Southern(6) & Hillside(6).
12 MOEs provided historically to Eastway for a family counselor/interpreter to assist children
and families.
Hospital school receives the base MOE allocation of 25 MOEs for Admin support
Holton school receives the base MOE allocation of 30 MOEs for Admin support.

Base MOE

4



D
ur

ha
m

 P
ub

lic
 S

ch
oo

ls
FY

 2
01

4-
15

 N
on

-s
al

ar
y 

Sc
ho

ol
 A

llo
tm

en
ts

1-
P

ro
je

ct
io

ns
 f

or
 S

ta
te

 -
 E

S
L 

In
st

ru
ct

io
na

l s
up

pl
ie

s,
 L

oc
al

 In
st

ru
ct

io
na

l D
is

cr
et

io
na

ry
, a

nd
 V

is
ua

l A
rt

s
ca

lc
ul

at
ed

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
E

qu
ity

 m
od

el
W

ei
gh

te
d 

on
 F

re
e 

&
 R

ed
uc

ed
 lu

nc
h 

co
un

ts
:

N
on

-fr
ee

 &
 re

du
ce

d 
m

ea
l c

ou
nt

1
E

le
m

en
ta

ry
 F

&
R

 m
ea

l c
ou

nt
1.

3
M

id
dl

e 
F&

R
 m

ea
l C

ou
nt

1.
5

H
ig

h 
sc

ho
ol

 F
&

R
 m

ea
l c

ou
nt

1.
5

W
ei

gh
te

d 
on

 L
E

P
 c

ou
nt

s:
E

le
m

en
ta

ry
1.

5
S

ec
on

da
ry

1.
8

2-
P

ro
je

ct
io

ns
 f

or
 o

th
er

 c
at

eg
or

ie
s:

E
M

H
O

El
ig

ib
le

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
 in

 F
Y 

12
Pe

r p
up

il

a)
C

A
P

S
 S

up
po

rt 
2

$ 
   

   
   

  
2

$ 
   

   
   

  
1

$ 
   

   
   

  

V
ar

ie
s 

b/
on

 
su

bt
yp

e
A

ll 
if 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
b)

N
C

W
IS

E
 S

up
pl

ie
s 

1
$ 

   
   

   
  

1
$ 

   
   

   
  

1
$ 

   
   

   
  

1
$ 

   
   

   
A

ll 
if 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
c)

Ja
ni

to
ria

l S
up

pl
ie

s
13

$ 
   

   
   

A
ll 

if 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

d)
M

ed
ia

 C
en

te
r S

up
pl

ie
s

13
$ 

   
   

   
13

$ 
   

   
   

13
$ 

   
   

   
13

$ 
   

   
 

A
ll 

if 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

e)
R

O
TC

 (H
S

 o
nl

y 
If 

ha
vi

ng
 p

ro
gr

am
)

-
$ 

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
  

3,
00

0
$ 

   
 

A
ll 

if 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

Fi
xe

d
a)

C
op

ie
r/

A
ux

 S
vc

s 

b)
M

us
ic

 
45

0
$ 

   
   

 
85

0
$ 

   
   

 
1,

50
0

$ 
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
A

ll 
E

le
m

en
ta

ry
 S

ch
oo

ls
; 

M
&

 H
 F

or
 D

SA
 o

nl
y 

   
   

   
  (

P
er

 M
us

ic
 T

ea
ch

er
 (E

), 
C

ho
ra

l T
ea

ch
er

 (M
&

H
)

c)
D

an
ce

 S
up

po
rt

  (
P

ro
gr

am
m

at
ic

)
40

0
$ 

   
   

 
40

0
$ 

   
   

 
50

0
$ 

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
E

le
m

en
ta

ry
 s

ch
oo

ls
: C

lu
b,

 R
N

 H
ar

ris
, S

an
dy

 R
id

ge
, W

G
 P

ea
rs

on
 E

le
m

 
   

   
   

  (
P

er
 D

an
ce

 T
ea

ch
er

)
an

d 
A

ll 
hi

gh
 s

ch
oo

ls

d)
D

ra
m

a 
S

up
po

rt
  (

P
ro

gr
am

m
at

ic
)

50
0

$ 
   

   
 

50
0

$ 
   

   
 

1,
70

0
$ 

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

E
le

m
en

ta
ry

 s
ch

oo
ls

: C
lu

b,
 R

N
 H

ar
ris

, S
an

dy
 R

id
ge

, W
G

 P
ea

rs
on

 E
le

m
   

   
   

  (
P

er
 D

ra
m

a 
Te

ac
he

r)
an

d 
A

ll 
hi

gh
 s

ch
oo

ls

E
M

H
O

El
ig

ib
le

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
 in

 F
Y 

12
Fi

xe
d

e)
B

an
d 

S
up

pl
ie

s
45

0
$ 

   
   

 
75

0
$ 

   
   

 
1,

60
0

$ 
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
A

ll 
M

id
dl

e 
&

 H
ig

h 
sc

ho
ol

s
(F

ul
l t

im
e 

&
 P

T 
Te

ac
he

rs
 fo

r H
S

)
   

   
   

  (
P

er
 B

an
d/

st
rin

gs
 T

ea
ch

er
)

50
0

$ 
   

   
 

A
ll 

on
 C

on
tra

ct

(1
80

*A
D

M
*1

0)
*c

os
t p

er
 c

op
y 

(0
.0

15
)

5



FY
 2

01
4-

15
 N

on
-s

al
ar

y 
Sc

ho
ol

 A
llo

tm
en

ts

f)
B

an
d 

In
st

ru
m

en
t R

ep
ai

r 
A

ll 
M

id
dl

e 
&

 H
ig

h 
sc

ho
ol

s
   

   
   

  (
P

er
 B

an
d/

st
rin

gs
 T

ea
ch

er
)

30
0

$ 
   

   
 

50
0

$ 
   

   
 

1,
20

0
$ 

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

g)
T

ra
ve

l 
1,

00
0

$ 
   

 
1,

50
0

$ 
   

 
2,

00
0

$ 
   

 

V
ar

ie
s 

b/
on

 
su

bt
yp

e
   

   
   

  (
pl

us
 p

er
 A

P
)

75
0

$ 
   

   
 

75
0

$ 
   

   
 

75
0

$ 
   

   
 

75
0

$ 
   

  

h)
A

th
le

tic
s 

-
$ 

   
   

  
10

,0
00

$ 
  

14
,8

50
$ 

  

i)
C

he
er

le
ad

in
g 

-
$ 

   
   

  
1,

40
0

$ 
   

 
90

0
$ 

   
   

 

j)
In

tr
am

ur
al

s 
-

$ 
   

   
  

1,
50

0
$ 

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

  
1,

50
0

$ 
  

A
ll 

M
id

dl
e 

sc
ho

ol
s;

 D
S

A
 &

 L
ak

ev
ie

w
 o

nl
y

Sp
ec

ia
l O

pe
ra

tin
g 

Fu
nd

s
a)

D
ua

l E
nr

ol
lm

en
t (

pp
)

H
S

 o
nl

y 
- F

ix
ed

 a
t 0

5-
06

 le
ve

l
b)

M
ag

ne
t/ 

C
ho

ic
e 

fu
nd

in
g

Fi
xe

d 
- 

S
el

ec
te

d 
sc

ho
ol

s

N
ot

es
: 1)
 D

S
A

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
al

lo
tm

en
ts

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
bo

th
 M

id
dl

e 
&

 H
ig

h 
C

rit
er

ia
 f

or
 s

om
e 

ca
te

go
rie

s:
M

us
ic

, D
an

ce
, D

ra
m

a,
 B

an
d,

 A
th

le
tic

s,
 C

he
er

le
ad

in
g,

 In
tr

am
ur

al
s

(T
ra

ve
l &

 C
A

P
S

 S
up

po
rt

s 
w

er
e 

ba
se

d 
on

 M
id

dl
e 

sc
ho

ol
's

 r
at

io
s)

2)
 D

id
 n

ot
 in

cl
ud

e 
in

 F
Y

 1
2 

P
ro

je
ct

io
ns

 f
or

 S
pe

ci
al

 a
llo

tm
en

ts
 f

or
:

H
os

pi
ta

l -
 T

ra
ve

l f
or

 H
om

eb
ou

nd
 S

tu
de

nt
s

15
,0

00
$ 

  
La

ke
 V

ie
w

 -
 C

A
P

S
 S

up
po

rt
s

48
,2

80
$ 

  

6



Durham Public Schools
Projection of the Fixed Cost and Inflationary Increases for Operational Expenses 
to the 2014-15 Budget

Utilities
Electrical Services - 5% increase 317,262$    

Natural Gas Services - 2% increase 22,135        

Janitorial Contract - 2% CPI increase 123,289      

Total Utilities 462,686$    

This list will be updated as we receive additional information.

7



Durham Public Schools
Projection of State Mandates to Cover Salary and Benefit Increases 
for the 2014-15 Budget

Beginning Teachers
Governor's Minimum Teacher Pay Raise  7.14%  -$2,200 Salary Increase 872,746$      

Supplement Increase 120,445        

FICA 75,979          

Retirement 148,482        

Total Beginning Teachers 1,217,652$   

Other Personnel
Estimated salary increase of 2% for all other personnel 451,948        

Supplement Increase 316,676        

FICA 58,800          

Retirement 114,909        

Total Other  Personnel 942,333$      

Other Inflationary Rates 
Retirement Rate Increase on current salaries 14.69% to 14.95% 135,713$      

Hospital Insurance Increase $5,285 to $5,435 124,162        

Total Other Inflationary Rates 259,875$      

Total Salary and Benefit Inceases 2,419,860$   

This list will be updated as we receive additional information.

8


	Agenda Packet
	ASC Agenda 3.13.14
	Meeting Minutes Precis -
	Minutes for 2.18.14

	Cooking Oil Packet
	Board Precis- AGR Fundraising Agreement
	AGR Fundraising Agreement DPS and Green Circle CLEAN

	Flavored Milk Update Packet
	Child Nutrition - Precis - Flavored Milk Update
	2013 - 2014 Flavored Milk Update - Executive Summary

	LGMS Bids for Track Packet
	Lowes Grove MS Precis
	Copy of Lowe Grove MS track improvements - bid tab
	Lowes Grove MS Owner agreement

	Hope Valley - Asphalt, Life Packet
	Hope Valley ES Precis
	Copy of Hope Valley ES ADA  Life safety upgrades - bid tab
	Hope Valley Owner agreement

	Budget Development Packet
	ASC PRECIS - 2014-15 Budget Development
	budgetpriorities201415rev1
	Projection of Fixed Costs Inflationary Increases and Formulas for FY 2014-15 3-3-14-2 pdf - Adobe Acrobat Pro
	Position Formulas 
	Non-Salary Formulas 
	Fixed Costs and Inflation Cost 
	Salary and Benefits
	Poof.pdf
	Non-Salary Formulas 






